REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC Form 10-O March 11, 2014

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

OUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE **ACT OF 1934**

For the quarterly period ended January 31, 2014

	Or
•	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the transition period from to
	Commission File Number 0-53359

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC.

Formerly Webdigs, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 11-3820796

(State of incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

2690 Weston Road, Suite 200 Weston, FL

33331

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (954) 888-9779

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to the filing requirements for the past 90 days.

x Yes "No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

x Yes "No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer "Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company x As of March 7, 2014 there were 58,308,612 shares of the issuer's common stock, \$0.001 par value, outstanding.

RealBiz Media Group, Inc. Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

			Page
PART I	FINANCIAL INFORMAT	ION	
Item 1.		Consolidated Unaudited Financial Statements	1
Item 2.		Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and	۷
		Results of Operations	
Item 3.		Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	6
Item 4.		Controls and Procedures	6
PART II	OTHER INFORMATION		
Item 1.		Legal Proceedings	7
Item 1A.		Risk Factors	7
Item 2.		Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities	7
Item 3.		Defaults Upon Senior Securities	7
Item 4.		Mine Safety Disclosures	7
Item 5.		Other Information	7
Item 6.		Exhibits	8
SIGNAT	URES		ç

EXHIBIT INDEX

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIODS ENDED JANUARY 31, 2014 AND 2013

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PAGE
Consolidated Unaudited Financial Statements:	
Consolidated Balance Sheets	F-1
Consolidated Unaudited Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss	F-2
Consolidated Unaudited Statements of Cash Flows	F-3
Notes to Consolidated Unaudited Financial Statements	F-4
3	

RealBiz Media Group, Inc. Consolidated Balance Sheets

	January 31, 2014 (Unaudited)		Octo 2013	ober 31, 3
Assets Current Assets Cash Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts Prepaid expenses Security deposits Total current assets	\$	166,327 65,391 127 323 232,168	\$	1,304,374 76,047 272 345 1,381,038
Property and equipment, net Website development costs and intangible assets, net Due from affiliates		56,654 4,087,646 895,399		56,357 4,254,582 4,199
Total assets	\$	5,271,867	\$	5,696,176
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable and accrued expenses Deferred revenue Convertible notes payable Loans payable Total current liabilities Total liabilities	\$	1,317,537 30,843 280,000 182,407 1,810,787	\$	1,257,032 31,310 280,000 191,214 1,759,556 1,759,556
Stockholders' Equity Series A convertible preferred stock, \$.001 par value; 125,000,000 authorized and 94,009,762 shares issued and outstanding at January 31, 2014 and October 31, 2013, respectively Common stock, \$.001 par value; 125,000,000 authorized and 58,347,779 shares issued and		94,010		94,010
outstanding at January 31,2014 and 49,039,511 shares issued and outstanding at October 31, 2013, respectively Additional paid-in-capital Subscription advances Other comprehensive loss Accumulated deficit Total stockholders' equity Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	58,348 15,072,641 - 186,314 (11,950,233) 3,461,080 5,271,867	\$	49,040 14,179,044 13,500 (19,215) (10,379,759) 3,936,620 5,696,176
Total stockholders' equity Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	3,461,080 5,271,867	\$	3,936,620 5,696,176

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated unaudited financial statements

RealBiz Media Group, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)

For the three months ended January 31,				
	2014		2013	
Revenues				
Real estate advertising revenue	\$	246,054	\$	271,995
Cost of revenues		21,990		22,205
Gross profit		224,064		249,790
Operating expenses				
Salaries and benefits		252,913		421,034
Selling and promotions expense		88,044		56,381
General and administrative		1,341,727		48,221
Total operating expenses		1,682,684		525,636
Operating loss		(1,458,620)		(275,846)
Other income (expense)				
Interest expense		(870)		-
Exchange gain (loss)		7,512		(2,791)
Total other income (expense)		6,642		(2,791)
Net loss	\$	(1,451,978)	\$	(278,637)
Preferred Stock Dividend		(118,496)		(155,137)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders	\$	(1,570,474)	\$	(433,774)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding		54,473,194		383,651
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$	(0.03)	\$	(1.13)
Comprehensive loss:				
Unrealized gain on currency translation adjustment		205,529		1,466
Comprehensive loss	\$	(1,364,945)	\$	(432,308)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated unaudited financial statements.

RealBiz Media Group, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

	For the three months ended January 31,			i
	201	•	201	3
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net loss	\$	(1,451,978)	\$	(278,637)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from operating activities:				
Other comprehensive income		205,529		1,466
Amortization and depreciation		346,098		-
Stock based compensation and consulting fees		649,404		-
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable		10,656		(34,606)
Decrease in prepaid expenses		145		-
Decrease in security deposits		22		-
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses		(57,991)		(89,202)
Decrease in due to affiliates		(891,199)		-
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue		(467)		3,344
Net cash used in operating activities		(1,189,781)		(397,635)
•				
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Purchase of computer equipment		(2,058)		-
Payments towards website development costs		(177,401)		-
Net cash used in investing activities		(179,459)		-
Cash flows from financing activities:				
Payments for loans payable		(8,807)		-
Proceeds from the sale of common stock and warrants		80,000		395,210
Proceeds from the exercise of outstanding warrants		160,000		-
Net cash provided by financing activities		231,193		395,210
Net decrease in cash		(1,138,047)		(2,425)
Cash at beginning of period		1,304,374		36,408
Cash at end of period	\$	166,327	\$	33,983
Supplemental disclosure:				
Cash paid for interest	\$	870	\$	-
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activity:				
Next 1 Interactive, Inc. Preferred Series B shares converted to common				
stock:				
Value	\$	349,750	\$	-
Shares		7,895,000		-

Next 1 Interactive, Inc. Preferred Series D shares converted to common

stock:

Value	\$ 122,625	\$ -
Shares	817,418	-
Settlement of prior year advances for subscriptions of common stock:		
Settlement of prior year advances for subscriptions of common stock.		
Value	\$ 13,500	\$ -
Shares	27,000	-
Warrants	9,000	-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated unaudited financial statements.

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1: NATURE OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Nature of Business

We are engaged in the business of providing digital media and marketing services for the real estate industry. We currently generate revenue from advertising, real estate broker commissions and referral fees.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim consolidated financial information furnished herein reflects all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring items, which in the opinion of management are necessary to fairly state RealBiz Media Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries' (collectively, the "Company" or "we," "us" or "our") financial position, results of operations and cas flows for the dates and periods presented and to make such information not misleading. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been omitted pursuant to rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"); nevertheless, management of the Company believes that the disclosures herein are adequate to make the information presented not misleading.

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2013, contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 13, 2014. The results of operations for the three months ended January 31, 2014, are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any other interim period or the fiscal year ending October 31, 2014.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. If actual results significantly differ from the Company's estimates, the Company's financial condition and results of operations could be materially impacted.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of balance sheet presentation and reporting of cash flows, the Company considers all unrestricted demand deposits, money market funds and highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of less than 90 days to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Company provides its marketing and promotional services to agents or brokers via a web-based portal that allows for credit card payments. The Company recognizes accounts receivable for amounts uncollected from the credit card service provider at the end of the accounting period. The Company regularly reviews outstanding receivables and provides for estimated losses through an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the level of established loss

reserves, the Company makes judgments regarding its customers' ability to make required payments, economic events and other factors. As the financial condition of these parties change, circumstances develop or additional information becomes available, adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts may be required. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses, and such losses traditionally have been within its expectations.

Property and Equipment

All expenditures on the acquisition for property and equipment are recorded at cost and capitalized as incurred, provided the asset benefits the Company for a period of more than one year. Expenditures on routine repairs and maintenance of property and equipment are charged directly to operating expense. The property and equipment is depreciated based upon its estimated useful life after being placed in service. The estimated useful life of computer equipment is 3 years. When equipment is retired, sold or impaired, the resulting gain or loss is reflected in earnings. The Company incurred depreciation expense of \$1,761 and \$-0- for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 360-10, "Property, Plant and Equipment", the Company periodically reviews its long- lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. The Company recognizes an impairment loss when the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of impairment is measured as the difference between the asset's estimated fair value and its book value. As of January 31, 2014, the Company did not impair any long-lived assets

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Website Development Costs

The Company accounts for website development costs in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 350-50 "Website Development Costs". Accordingly, all costs incurred in the planning stage are expensed as incurred, costs incurred in the website application and infrastructure development stage that meet specific criteria are capitalized and costs incurred in the day to day operation of the website are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with ASC 350-30-65 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, the Company assesses the impairment of identifiable intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers to be important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

- 1. Significant underperformance to historical or projected future operating results;
- 2. Significant changes in the manner or use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business; and
 - 3. Significant negative industry or economic trends.

When the Company determines that the carrying value of an intangible may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment and the carrying value of the asset cannot be recovered from projected undiscounted cash flow, the Company records an impairment charge equal to the amount book value exceeds fair value. The Company measures fair value based on a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount rate determined by management to be commensurate with the risk inherent to the current business model. Significant management judgment is required in determining whether an indicator of impairment exists and in projecting cash flows. The Company did not consider it necessary to record an impairment charge on its intangible assets during the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013.

Intellectual properties that have finite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives. The Company incurred amortization expense of \$344,337 and \$-0- for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Convertible Debt Instruments

The Company records debt net of debt discount for beneficial conversion features and warrants, on a relative fair value basis. Beneficial conversion features are recorded pursuant to the Beneficial Conversion and Debt Topics of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The amounts allocated to warrants and beneficial conversion rights are recorded as debt discount and as additional paid-in-capital. Debt discount is amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted ASC topic 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" (ASC 820), formerly SFAS No. 157 "Fair Value Measurements," effective January 1, 2009. ASC 820 defines "fair value" as the price that would be

received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. There was no impact relating to the adoption of ASC 820 to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

ASC 820 also describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

- Level 1: Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities traded in active markets.
- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: Inputs that are generally unobservable. These inputs may be used with internally developed methodologies that result in management's best estimate of fair value.

Financial instruments consist principally of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities. The carrying amounts of such financial instruments in the accompanying balance sheets approximate their fair values due to their relatively short- term nature. The fair value of long-term debt is based on current rates at which the Company could borrow funds with similar remaining maturities. The carrying amounts approximate fair value. It is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to any significant currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides its marketing and promotional services to agents or brokers via a web-based portal that allows for credit card payments. Customers may pay a monthly recurring fee or an annual fee. Some customers additionally pay a one-time set up fee. Monthly recurring fees are recognized in the month the service is rendered. Collection of one-time set up fees and annual services fees give rise to recognized monthly revenue in the then-current month as well as deferred revenue liabilities representing the collected fee for services yet to be delivered.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues includes costs attributable to services sold and delivered. These costs include such items as credit card fees, sales commission to business partners, expenses related to our participation in industry conferences, and public relations expenses.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred and are included in selling and promotions expense in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements. Advertising expense for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 was \$25,880 and \$21,153, respectively.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company computes share based payments in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 718-10 "Compensation" (ASC 718-10). ASC 718-10 establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods and services at fair value, focusing primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employees services in share-based payment transactions. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods and services that are based on the fair value of an entity's equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments.

In March 2005, the SEC issued SAB No. 107, Share-Based Payment ("SAB 107") which provides guidance regarding the interaction of ASC 718-10 and certain SEC rules and regulations. The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of ASC 718-10.

The Company accounts for non-employee share-based awards in accordance with ASC Topic 505-50, Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Foreign Currency and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaries is typically the applicable local currency. The translation from the respective foreign currencies to United States Dollars (U.S. Dollar) is performed for balance sheet accounts using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for income statement accounts using a weighted average exchange rate during the period. Gains or losses resulting from such translation are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included

in foreign currency income or loss except for the effect of exchange rates on long-term inter-company transactions considered to be a long-term investment, which are accumulated and credited or charged to other comprehensive income.

Transaction gains and losses are recognized in our results of operations based on the difference between the foreign exchange rates on the transaction date and on the reporting date. We recognized net foreign exchange gain of \$7,512 and a loss of \$2,791 for three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The foreign currency exchange gains and losses are included as a component of other (income) expense, net, in the accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations. For the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, the accumulated comprehensive gain was \$205,529 and \$1,466, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, as clarified by ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are determined based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities given the provisions of enacted tax laws. Deferred income tax provisions and benefits are based on changes to the assets or liabilities from year to year. In providing for deferred taxes, the Company considers tax regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, estimates of future taxable income, and available tax planning strategies. If tax regulations, operating results or the ability to implement tax-planning strategies vary, adjustments to the carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities may be required. Valuation allowances are recorded related to deferred tax assets based on the "more likely than not" criteria of ASC 740.

ASC 740-10 requires that the Company recognize the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the "more-likely-than-not" threshold, the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements is the largest benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority.

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock, common stock equivalents and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during each period. Diluted loss per common share is not presented because it is anti-dilutive. The Company's common stock equivalents include the following:

	2014
Series A convertible preferred stock issued and outstanding	94,009,762
Warrants to purchase common stock issued, outstanding and exercisable	8,467,682
Stock options issued, outstanding and exercisable	1,000
Shares on convertible promissory notes	500,000
	102,978,444

Concentrations, Risks and Uncertainties

The Company's operations are related to the real estate industry and its prospects for success are tied indirectly to interest rates and the general housing and business climates in the United States.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") or other standards setting bodies that are adopted by us as of the specified effective dates. Unless otherwise discussed, we believe the impact of recently issued standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows upon adoption.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has incurred net losses of \$1,451,978 and \$278,637 for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013 respectively. At January 31, 2014, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$1,578,619, and an accumulated deficit of \$11,950,233. It is management's opinion that these facts raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern without additional debt or equity financing. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts nor to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

January 31,

In order to meet its working capital needs through the next twelve months, the Company may consider plans to raise additional funds through the issuance of additional shares of common stock and or through the issuance of debt instruments. Although we intend to obtain additional financing to meet our cash needs, we may be unable to secure any additional financing on terms that are favorable or acceptable to us, if at all.

Note 4: Property and Equipment

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company recorded the purchase of \$2,058 of computer equipment which is being depreciated using the straight line method over 3 year period. The Company has recorded \$1,761 and \$-0- of depreciation expense for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The depreciable equipment has a weighted average remaining useful life of 2.3 years. There was no asset impairment recorded for the three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013. As of January 31, 2014, \$42,149 of previously purchased equipment has not be placed in service.

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At January 31, 2014, the Company's intangible assets are as follows:

	January 31, 2014 Remaining Useful Life Cost		Accumulated Amortization		Net Carrying Value		
Sales/Marketing Agreement Website development costs (not plead in	2.2 years	\$	4,796,178	\$	1,721,685	\$	3,074,493
Website development costs (not placed in service)			1,013,153		-0-		1,013,153
,		\$	5,809,331	\$	1,721,685	\$	4,087,646

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company incurred expenditures of \$177,401 for website development costs which have not yet been placed in service. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, estimated to be 4 years, except for the website, which is 3 years. Amortization expense related to website development costs (in service) and intangible assets was \$344,377 and \$-0-, for three months ended January 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

NOTE 6: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

At January 31, 2014, the Company's accounts payable and accrued expenses are as follows:

	Janua	ary 31, 2014
Trade payables and accruals	\$	130,778
Accrued preferred stock dividends		642,391
Payroll and commissions		460,108
Other liabilities		84,260
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$	1,317,537

NOTE 7: DUE FROM/TO AFFILIATES

During the normal course of business, the Company receives and/ or makes advances for operating expenses from our parent Company, Next 1 Interactive, Inc. As of January 31, 2014, the Company is due \$895,399 as a result of such transactions.

NOTE 8: CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company incurred no activity and the remaining principal balance as of January 31, 2014 is \$280,000. The conversion rate of the payable on demand note(s) is \$0.15 per share.

NOTE 9: LOANS PAYABLE

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company made \$8,807 in principal payments and incurred \$870 in interest expense for the promissory note. There was no activity for the three months ended January 31, 2014 for the non-related third party investors.

The Company's loans payable is summarized follows:

	Janua	ry 31, 2014
Promissory note	\$	12,407
Non-related third party investors		170,000
Total Loans payable	\$	182,407

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 10: SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The Company has 250,000,000 shares authorized and has designated 125,000,000 shares for common stock at \$.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares for Series A preferred stock at \$.001 par value and the remaining 25,000,000 is available to be designated as either common or preferred stock.

Common Stock

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company:

- issued 110,000 shares of its common stock along with 110,000 one year warrants with an exercise price between a \$1.00 and \$1.25 for cash proceeds of \$80,000.
- issued 160,000 shares of its common stock upon exercise of 160,000 outstanding warrants for cash proceeds of \$160,000.
 - issued 27,000 shares of its common stock along with 9,000 one year warrants with an exercise price \$1.00 as settlement of \$13,500 of proceeds received in advance for prior fiscal year subscription agreements.

issued 298,850 shares of its common stock along with 182,850 one year warrants with an exercise price of \$1 for a total value of \$649,405 for consulting fees rendered. The value of the common stock issued was based on the fair value of the stock at the time of issuance. The value of the warrants was estimated at the time of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: risk free interest rate between 0.10% and 0.14%, dividend yield of -0-%, volatility factor between 319.22% and 326.53% and expected life of one year.

issued 8,712,418 shares of its common stock valued at \$517,375 upon the conversion of the holders of convertible preferred shares held in its parent company Next 1 Interactive, Inc.

Common Stock Warrants

At January 31, 2014, there were 8,467,682 warrants outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of \$1.04 and weighted average life of .57 years. During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company granted 301,850 warrants, 160,000 were exercised and 10,000 were assigned.

Convertible Preferred Stock Series A

As of January 31, 2014, the Company had 94,009,762 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock Series A issued and outstanding respectively. The preferred shares were issued at \$.001 par, bear dividends at a rate of 10% per annum payable on a quarterly basis when declared by the board of directors. Dividends accrue whether or not they have been declared by the board. At the election of the Company, Preferred Dividends may be converted into Series A Stock, with each converted share having a value equal to the market price per share, subject to adjustment for stock splits. In order to exercise such option, the Company delivers written notice to the holder. Each share of Series A Stock is convertible at the option of the holder thereof at any time into a number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing the Stated Value by the Conversion Price then in effect. The conversion price for the Series A Stock is equal to \$1.00 per share.

In the event of (a) the sale, conveyance, exchange, exclusive license, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the intellectual property or assets of the Company, (b) any acquisition of the Company by means of consolidation, stock exchange, stock sale, merger of other form of corporate reorganization of the Company with any other entity in which the Company's stockholders prior to the consolidation or merger own less than a majority of the voting securities of the surviving entity, or (c) the winding up or dissolution of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (each such event in clause (a), (b) or (c) a "liquidation event"), the Board shall determine in good faith the amount legally available for distribution to stockholders after taking into account the distribution of assets among, or payment thereof over to, creditors of the Company (the "net assets available for distribution"). The holders of the Series A stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the net assets available for Distribution (or the consideration received in such transaction) before any payment or distribution shall be made to the holders of any class of preferred stock ranking junior to the Series A Stock or to the Common Stock, an amount for each share of Series A Stock equal to all accrued and unpaid Preferred Dividends plus the Stated Value, as adjusted (the "Series A Liquidation Amount").

Accrued but unpaid preferred stock dividends on the outstanding preferred shares as of January 31, 2014 totaled \$642,691 and are included in accrued expenses.

NOTE 11: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the three months ended January 31, 2014, the Company paid \$800 a month in rent for office space on behalf of an officer of the Company.

REALBIZ MEDIA GROUP, INC. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

NOTE 12: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC Topic 855-10, the Company has analyzed its operations subsequent to January 31, 2014 to the date these financial statements were issued, and on February 24, 2014, our Parent Company, Next 1 Interactive, Inc. ("Next 1") entered into a note amendment with a convertible promissory note holder which, among other things: extended the maturity date of various notes held by the noteholder until December 1, 2015, sets the conversion price at a fixed \$0.50 per share and permits Next 1 to force a conversion of the notes into its common stock under certain circumstances. As part of this agreement, the Company issued 12,000,000 common stock warrants at an exercise price of \$0.50 per share.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the attached consolidated unaudited financial statements and notes thereto, and our consolidated audited financial statements and related notes for our fiscal year ended October 31, 2013 found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Where possible, we have tried to identify these forward looking statements by using words such as "anticipate," "believe," "intends," or similar expressions. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements due to important factors and risks including, but not limited to, those set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements made in this section of our report are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements generally relate to and are based upon our current plans, expectations, assumptions and projections about future events. Our management currently believes that the various plans, expectations, and assumptions reflected in or suggested by these forward-looking statements are reasonable. Nevertheless, all forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties and our actual future results may be materially different from the plans, objectives or expectations, or our assumptions and projections underlying our present plans, objectives and expectations, which are expressed in this section.

In light of the foregoing, prospective investors are cautioned that the forward-looking statements included in this filing may ultimately prove to be inaccurate—even materially inaccurate. Because of the significant uncertainties inherent in such forward-looking statements, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation or warranty by RealBiz Media Group, Inc. or any other person that our objectives, plans, expectations or projections that are contained in this filing will be achieved in any specified time frame, if ever. We undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to the forward-looking statements or reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document. The risks discussed in the Item 1A of this filing should be considered in evaluating our prospects and future performance.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of the Company's financial condition and results of operations are based upon its consolidated unaudited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these unaudited financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, management evaluates past judgments and estimates, including those related to bad debts, accrued liabilities, and contingencies. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The accounting policies and related risks described in the Company's annual report on Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 13, 2014 are those that depend most heavily on these judgments and estimates. As of January 31, 2014, there had been no material changes to any of the critical accounting policies contained therein.

.

Results of Operations

Three months ended January 31, 2014 compared to three months ended January 31, 2013.

Revenues

Our total revenues decreased 10% to \$246,054 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to \$271,995 for the three months ended January 31, 2013, a decrease of \$25,941. This is due to the loss of a broker with significant monthly revenues as well as photographer inactivity during the holiday season.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenues decreased 1% to \$21,990 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to \$22,205 for the three months ended January 31, 2013, a decrease of \$215. This is due to a decrease in the commission revenue share portion of the multiple listing service contracts expiring and not renewed.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses, include salaries and benefits, selling and promotion, general and administrative expenses, increased 220% to \$1,682,684 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to \$525,636 for the three months ended January 31, 2013, an increase of \$1,157,048. This increase was substantially due to an increase in consulting fees incurred in raising capital of \$670,297, an increase in the amortization of intangible assets of \$344,337 and to a lesser extent an increase in expenses related to investor relations of \$128,358, travel and entertainment of \$71,115, selling and promotion of \$31,663, miscellaneous expense of \$29,847, legal and professional fees of \$19,921, insurance of \$17,742 and audit and accounting fees of \$16,526. This was partially offset by a decrease in salaries and benefits of \$168,121 and to a lesser extent a decrease in expenses related to dues and subscriptions of \$3,992 and telephone expense of \$645.

Other Income (Expenses)

Exchange gains increased 369% to \$7,512 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to exchange losses of \$2,791 for the three months ended January 31, 2013, an increase of \$10,303 due primarily to the fluctuation between the exchange rate of the Canadian dollar to the U.S. dollar. This was partially offset by the increase in interest expense 100% to \$870 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to \$-0- for the three months ended January 31, 2013, an increase of \$870 due primarily to the amortization of the interest expense on a promissory note.

Net Loss

We had a net loss of \$1,451,978 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, compared to net loss of \$278,637 for the three months ended January 31, 2013, an increase of \$1,173,341. The increase in net loss from 2013 to 2014 was substantially due to an increase in consulting fees incurred in raising capital of \$670,297, an increase in the amortization of intangible assets of \$344,337 and to a lesser extent an increase in investor relations of \$128,358.

Assets and Employees; Research and Development

We do not currently anticipate purchasing any equipment or other assets in the near term, however, as we expand operations, we will need additional equipment and employees to create and market our products.

Liquidity and Capital Resources; Anticipated Financing Needs

At January 31, 2014, the Company had \$166,327 cash on-hand, a decrease of \$1,138,047 from \$1,304,374 at the end of fiscal 2013. The decrease in cash was due primarily to operating expenses.

Net cash used in operating activities was \$1,189,781 for the three months ended January 31, 2014, an increase of \$792,146 from \$397,635 used during the three months ended January 31, 2013. This increase was mainly due to an increase in net loss, amortization and depreciation, stock based compensation off set by decrease in due to affiliates.

We have financed our operations since inception primarily through proceeds from equity financings and revenue derived from operations. During the three months ended January 31, 2014, we raised \$240,000 from the sale of common stock and warrants and the exercise of warrants. Our continued operations will primarily depend on our ability to raise additional capital from various sources including equity and debt financings, as well as our revenue derived from operations. We can give no assurances that any additional capital that we are able to obtain will be sufficient to meet our needs or will be on favorable terms. Based on our current plans, we believe that our cash provided from the above sources will be sufficient to enable us to meet our planned operating needs for at least the next 12 months.

We have based our estimate on assumptions that may prove to be wrong. We may need to obtain additional funds sooner or in greater amounts than we currently anticipate. Potential sources of financing include strategic relationships, public or private sales of our shares or debt and other sources. We may seek to access the public or private equity markets when conditions are favorable due to our long-term capital requirements. We do not have any committed sources of financing at this time, and it is uncertain whether additional funding will be available when we need it on terms that will be acceptable to us, or at all. If we raise funds by selling additional shares of common stock or other securities convertible into common stock, the ownership interest of our existing stockholders will be diluted. If we are not able to obtain financing when needed, we may be unable to carry out our business plan. As a result, we may have to significantly limit our operations and our business, financial condition and results of operations would be materially harmed.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We do not hold any derivative instruments and do not engage in any hedging activities.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on this evaluation, because of the Company's limited resources and limited number of employees, management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were ineffective as of January 31, 2014.

Management has identified control deficiencies regarding the lack of segregation of duties and the need for a stronger internal control environment. Management of the Company believes that these material weaknesses are due to the small size of the Company's accounting staff. The small size of the Company's accounting staff may prevent adequate controls in the future, such as segregation of duties, due to the cost/benefit of such remediation.

To mitigate the current limited resources and limited employees, we rely heavily on direct management oversight of transactions, along with the use of external legal and accounting professionals. As we grow, we expect to increase our number of employees, which should enable us to implement adequate segregation of duties within the internal control framework.

These control deficiencies could result in a misstatement of account balances that would result in a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement to our consolidated financial statements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In light of this material weakness, we performed additional analyses and procedures in order to conclude that our consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended January 31, 2014 included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q were fairly stated in accordance with US GAAP. Accordingly, management believes that despite our material weaknesses, our consolidated unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended January 31, 2014 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in accordance with US GAAP.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include, but are not limited to, the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future

conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are not currently a party to any material litigation and are not aware of any threatened litigation that would have a material effect on our business.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We believe there are no changes that constitute material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2013, filed with the SEC on February 13, 2014.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

Set forth below is information regarding securities sold by us during the three months ended January 31, 2014 that were not registered under the Securities Act:

- Issued 110,000 shares of our common stock along with 110,000 one year warrants with an exercise price between a \$1.00 and \$1.25 for cash proceeds of \$80,000.
- Issued 160,000 shares of our common stock upon exercise of 160,000 outstanding warrants for cash proceeds of \$160,000.
- Issued 27,000 shares of our common stock along with 9,000 one year warrants with an exercise price \$1.00 as settlement of \$13,500 of proceeds received in advance for prior fiscal year subscription agreements.
- Issued 298,850 shares of our common stock along with 182,850 one year warrants with an exercise price of \$1 for a · total value of \$649,405 for consulting fees rendered. The value of the common stock issued was based on the fair value of the stock at the time of issuance.
- Issued 8,712,418 shares of our common stock valued at \$517,375 upon the conversion of the holders of convertible preferred shares held in its parent company Next 1 Interactive, Inc.

Unless otherwise stated, the sales of the above securities were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act (or Regulation D promulgated there under), as transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering. The recipients of the securities in each of these transactions represented their intentions to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof, and appropriate legends were placed upon the stock certificates issued in these transactions.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

There were no defaults upon senior securities during the quarter ended January 31, 2014.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information

There is no other information required to be disclosed under this item which was not previously disclosed.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit Number	Description
4.1	Note Amendment between Next 1 and Mark A. Wilton, as countersigned by Realbiz Media Group, Inc. dated February 24, 2014 \ast
4.2	Warrant issued by Realbiz Media Group, Inc. to Mark A. Wilton *
31.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer **
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer **
32.1	Certification of Chief Executive Officer **
32.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer **
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document**
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document**
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document**
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document**
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document**
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document**

^{*}Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2014. ** Furnished herewith.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RealBiz Media Group, Inc.

/s/ William Kerby William Kerby President and Chief Executive Officer March 11, 2014

/s/ Adam Friedman Adam Friedman Chief Financial Officer March 11, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name	Title	Date
/s/ William Kerby William Kerby	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)	March 11, 2014
/s/ Adam Friedman Adam Friedman	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)	March 11, 2014